
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Frank Hotchkiss 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Cathy Murillo 
Randy Rowse 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

JANUARY 24, 2012 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

1/24/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the special meeting of November 22, 2011, the regular meeting of November 22, 
2011, and the regular meeting of November 29, 2011 (cancelled). 
  



 

1/24/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

2. Subject:  Adoption Of The 2011 Update Of The Santa Barbara County Multi-
Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan And The City Of Santa Barbara Annex 
(520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the 2011 Update of the Santa 
Barbara County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan and the City of Santa 
Barbara Annex. 
  

3. Subject:  Professional Services Agreement For Tertiary Filtration 
Assessment And Design (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Camp Dresser McKee & Smith, Inc., in the 
amount of $449,795 for engineering assessment and preliminary design services 
for the recycled water filtration facility, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $44,980 for extra services of Camp Dresser 
McKee & Smith, Inc., that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work. 
  

4. Subject:  Reappointment Of Youth Intern, Michael Yi, To Parks And 
Recreation Commission (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council reappoint youth intern Michael Yi to the Parks 
and Recreation Commission. 
  

5. Subject:  Tactical Patrol Rifle Project - Motor Detail (330.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a donation in the amount of $23,220 from the Santa Barbara 

Police Foundation; and 
B. Appropriate the donation of $23,220 from the Santa Barbara Police 

Foundation to the Police Asset Forfeiture and Miscellaneous Grants Fund 
for the purchase and installation of motorcycle patrol rifles. 

 
 
NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, January 19, 2012, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

1/24/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

7. Subject:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment For Veronica Meadows Specific 
Plan And Veronica Meadows Bridge Ballot Measure (680.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Direct City Clerk's staff and the City Attorney to prepare the necessary 

resolutions required to call a special City election for Tuesday, June 5, 
2012, and to consolidate the City election with the statewide primary 
election being conducted by the County of Santa Barbara, to place a ballot 
measure before City voters on whether the City Council should grant a 
construction right-of-way for a City street and bridge to be constructed 
across Arroyo Burro Creek utilizing a corner of City-owned park open 
space property adjacent to Las Positas Road in order to provide access 
for the Veronica Meadows residential subdivision project as required by 
City Charter §520; and 

B. Defer the Council's consideration of the adoption of An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Municipal Code Title 28 by 
Amending Chapter 28.50, the "Veronica Meadows Specific Plan," until 
after the special City election of June 5, 2012. 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

8. Subject:  De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon 
Perdido Streets (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report on the options for intersection improvements at the 

intersection of De La Vina and Figueroa Streets; 
B. Approve the installation of marked crosswalks and associated warning 

signs at the intersection of De La Vina and Figueroa Streets; and 
C. Hear an update on improvements at the intersection of De La Vina and 

Canon Perdido Streets. 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

9. Subject:  Advisory Groups Updates And Council Liasons (140.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the appointment of Liaisons to 
Advisory Boards and Commissions. 
  



 

1/24/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS (CONT’D) 

10. Subject:  Appointment To Planning Commission (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council appoint an applicant to the Planning 
Commission. 
 (Continued from December 13, 2011, Agenda Item No. 18) 
  

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT'D) 

11. Subject:  Police Department Update (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police 
Chief regarding the Santa Barbara Police Department. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION  



 

1/24/2012 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  State Route 225 Relinquishment Update (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive an update on the State Route 225 Relinquishment; and 
B. Provide direction to staff regarding the State Route 225 Relinquishment. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
November 22, 2011 

COTTAGE HOSPITAL, 320 WEST PUEBLO STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 10:34 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Grant House, Randy Rowse, Michael Self, Bendy White. 
Staff present:  City Administrator’s Office Supervisor Jennifer Jennings. 
 
The Planning Commission meeting was called to order, and the meeting continued in 
joint session. 
 
Planning Commissioners present:  Bruce Bartlett, Michael Jordan, John C. Jostes, 
Sheila Lodge, Deborah L. Schwartz. 
Planning Commissioners absent:  Charmaine Curtis Jacobs, Stella Larson. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 17, 2011, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 
 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION SITE VISIT 
 
Subject:  Cottage Hospital, 320 West Pueblo Street 
 
Recommendation:  That Council and the Planning Commission make a joint site visit to 
Cottage Hospital, located at 320 West Pueblo Street. 
 

(Cont’d) 
  



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

Subject:  Cottage Hospital, 320 West Pueblo Street (Cont’d) 
 

Discussion: 
Cottage Hospital representatives led Councilmembers and Planning 
Commissioners on a tour of Phase 4 of the hospital’s reconstruction.  The tour 
included a reception area, patient garden, hospital room, surgery room, and 
helipad. 

 
The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 11:30 a.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 22, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.  (The Finance and 
Ordinance Committees, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Randy Rowse, Michael 
Self, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Grant House. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, Acting City Attorney N. Scott 
Vincent, Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Kenneth Loch, Rose Aldana.  
 
Councilmember House entered the meeting at 2:08 p.m.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 - 10 and 12 - 15)   
 
The titles of ordinances and resolutions related to Consent Calendar items were read.  
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers House/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended.   

Vote:  
Unanimous roll call vote.  

 
 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. Subject:  Minutes    
 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of September 26, the regular meeting of 
October 4, and the special meeting of October 6, 2011.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.  

 
2. Subject:  October 2011 Investment Report  (260.02)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the October 2011 Investment Report. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 22, 2011, report from the 
Finance Director).   

 
3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Grant Of Easement At 633 Bath Street 

(330.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Grant of an Easement for 
a Private Sewer Service Lateral Across the City-Owned Property at 633 Bath 
Street to Richard L. and Teresa Vaughan, Owners of the Adjacent Property at 
631 Bath Street, to Replace an Existing Sewer Service Lateral Displaced by the 
Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5573; Deed No. 61-367.   

 
4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Stearns Wharf 

Bait & Tackle (330.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Five-Year Lease 
Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Reggie Drew, Doing Business as 
Stearns Wharf Bait & Tackle, for the Lease Space at 232 Stearns Wharf, 
Effective December 15, 2011.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5574; Agreement 
No. 23,949.   

 
5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Amendment To Lease With Mercury Air 

Center - Santa Barbara, Inc. (330.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving an Amendment to Lease 
Agreement No. 200846 Between the City and Mercury Air Center - Santa 
Barbara, Inc.   

 
(Cont’d) 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

5. (Cont’d) 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5575; Agreement 
No. 21,267.2.   

 
6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Municipal Code Title 14, 

Chapter 20 - Metering Requirements (540.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
Municipal Code by Repealing Section 14.20.160 Pertaining to Separate Water 
Meters.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 22, 2011, report from the 
Public Works Director; proposed ordinance).   

 
7. Subject:  TEFRA Hearing For American Baptist Homes Of The West (Valle 

Verde) Debt Issuance  (280.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Tax-Exempt Bond Financing to be Issued by the California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority to Benefit American Baptist Homes of the 
West and Certain Affiliates.   
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Acting City Attorney N. Scott Vincent. 
 - Members of the Public:  Jermaine Chastain, Hidden Oaks Homeowners 

Association.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 11-069 (November 22, 
2011, report from the Finance Director; proposed resolution).   

 
8. Subject:  Certification Of The Election Results Of The Official Canvass For The 

General Municipal Election Of November 8, 2011 (110.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Reciting the Fact of the Vote-By-Mail 
General Municipal Election Held on November 8, 2011, Declaring the Results, 
and Such Other Matters as Provided by State Law.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 11-070 (November 22, 
2011, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Administrative Services 
Director; proposed resolution).   

 
 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

9. Subject:  Emergency Purchase Order Contract For Conejo Road Storm Drain 
Installation Project  (530.04)    

 
Recommendation:  That Council retroactively approve an Emergency Purchase 
Order Contract with MGE Underground for the Conejo Road Storm Drain 
Installation Project in the amount of $86,404.09, pursuant to Municipal Code 
Section 4.52.080, pertaining to emergency purchases.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 22, 2011, report from the 
Public Works Director).   

 
10. Subject:  Consent To Sublease Between Ampersand Aviation, LLC, And 

Signature Flight Support Corporation (330.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute a Consent to Sublease Agreement between Ampersand Aviation, LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Company, and Signature Flight Support Corporation, a 
Delaware Corporation, for hangar building space at 495 South Fairview Avenue, 
at the Santa Barbara Airport.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,950 (November 22, 
2011, report from the Airport Director).   

 
12. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Designation Of City 

Landmarks (640.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of December 6, 2011, at 2:00 p.m. 
for a public hearing to consider the proposed designation of the following as City 
landmarks: 
• Frederick H. Booth House and Garage, 105 Ontare Hills Lane 
• State Street Facade of the Granada Building, 1214 State Street  
• Moreton Bay Fig Tree, 320 W. Pueblo Street   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 4, 2011, memorandum from 
the Community Development Department).   

 
NOTICES  
 
13. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 17, 2011, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet.    

 
14. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of November 29, 2011.    
 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

15. Received a letter of resignation from Living Wage Advisory Committee Member 
Allen Williams; the vacancy will be part of the next City Advisory Group 
recruitment.    

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar.  

 
ITEM REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
11. Subject:  Contract For Construction For The El Estero Wastewater Treatment 

Plant Pilot Fats, Oil And Grease Program (540.13)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$572,500, for construction of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Pilot Fats, Oil and Grease Program, Bid No. 3637; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $90,000 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work, differences between estimated 
bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment, and additional 
scope to connect the project controls to the current Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition system;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc., in the amount of $12,752 for construction support 
services, and authorize the General Services Manager to approve 
expenditures of up to $1,275 for extra services of AECOM that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work;  

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mimiaga 
Engineering Group in the amount of $43,280 for construction management 
services, and authorize the General Services Manager to approve 
expenditures of up to $4,328 for extra services of Mimiaga Engineering 
Group that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

E. Increase Wastewater Capital Fund appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $847,778, representing the total costs for this project that will be funded 
from a State- and City Council-approved loan from the Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund.   

 
Documents: 

November 22, 2011, report from the Public Works Director. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong.  
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers House/Rowse to approve recommendations A, B, D, and 
E; Contract Nos. 23,951 and 23,952.   

Vote:  
Unanimous voice vote.  

 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  
 
16. Subject:  Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments For Veronica Meadows Specific Plan (680.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Acknowledging Receipt of the California Coastal 
Commission’s Resolution of Certification, Accepting and Agreeing to 
Suggested Modifications for the Final Certification, and Agreeing to Issue 
Coastal Development Permits for the Total Area Included in the Certified 
Local Coastal Program; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Municipal Code 
Title 28 by Amending Chapter 28.50, the "Veronica Meadows Specific 
Plan."   

 
Documents: 
 - November 22, 2011, report from the Assistant City 

Administrator/Community Development Director. 
 - Proposed Resolution and Ordinance. 
 - Affidavit of Publication. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 - November 21, 2011, letter from Steven Amerikaner, Attorney, 

representing Peak-Las Positas Partners (Applicant). 
 
Public Comment Opened: 

2:24 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Project Planner Allison De Busk. 
 - Members of the Public:  Steven Amerikaner; Marc Chytilo, Citizens 

Planning Association and Santa Barbara Urban Creeks Council. 
 
Public Comment Closed: 

2:38 p.m.  
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers House/Francisco to approve the recommendations; 
Resolution No. 11-071.   

Vote:  
Majority roll call vote (Noes:  Mayor Schneider).   

 
  



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
17. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold interviews of applicants to various City 
Advisory Groups. 

(Continued from November 15, 2011, Item No. 18)   
 
Speakers: 

- The following applicants were interviewed: 
Access Advisory Committee: 

Ken McLellan 
Architectural Board of Review: 

Kirk Gradin 
Travis Colburn 
Stephanie Poole 

Arts Advisory Committee: 
Thea Vandervoort 
Carol Taylor 
Linda Saccoccio 

Community Events & Festivals Committee: 
Jason McCarthy 

Fire and Police Commission: 
John Torell 
Thomas Parker 

Neighborhood Advisory Council: 
Teresa Peña 

Planning Commission: 
William Anikouchine 
Stephen Cushman 
Dan Secord 
Travis Colburn 

- Members of the Public:  Robert Burke.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS  
 
Information: 
 - Mayor Schneider commented on her recent visit to Santa Barbara’s sister city, 

Toba City, Japan; the Mayor also reported on a meeting held by the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments regarding the relinquishment of 
State Route 225 to the City.  

 - Councilmember Hotchkiss mentioned that he had issued a proclamation to the 
Santa Barbara Maritime Museum recognizing the museum’s installation of a new 
exhibit. 

 
(Cont’d) 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

Information (Cont’d) 
 - Councilmember Francisco reported that at a recent meeting of the Cachuma 

Conservation Release Board, responsibilities for fisheries projects was formally 
transferred to the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board.  

 - Councilmember White spoke about his attendance, along with Councilmember 
Francisco, at a summit meeting convened to discuss the wide range of issues 
surrounding homelessness.  

 
RECESS  
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 3:31 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 18 and 19, and she stated there would be no 
reportable action taken during the closed sessions.  
 
CLOSED SESSIONS  
 
18. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is: Juan 
Richard Gutierrez v. City of Santa Barbara. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated   

 
Documents: 

November 22, 2011, report from the Finance Director. 
 
Time: 

3:36 p.m. - 3:45 p.m. 
 
No report made.  

 
19. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is City of Santa 
Barbara v. Chevron USA, Inc., et al. (Contra Costa County Superior Court Case 
No. CIVMSC10-00896). 

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated   

 
Documents: 

November 22, 2011, report from the City Attorney. 
(Cont’d) 



11/22/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

19. (Cont’d) 
 

Time: 
3:45 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

 
No report made.  

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



11/29/2011 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 29, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
The regular meeting of the City Council, scheduled for 2:00 p.m. on November 29, 
2011, was cancelled by the Council on November 9, 2010. 
 
The next regular meeting of the City Council is scheduled for December 6, 2011, at 
2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  520.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Office of Emergency Services, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption Of The 2011 Update Of The Santa Barbara County Multi-

Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan And The City Of Santa Barbara 
Annex 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Adopting the 2011 Update of the Santa Barbara County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and the City of Santa Barbara Annex. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2004, the City adopted the first version of the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan in 
accordance with the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA2K).  In early 2010, the 
City was notified that the Plan was due for its 5-year update.  The Santa Barbara County 
Office of Emergency Management (SBCOEM) applied for and received a grant on behalf 
of the County and all eight cities to acquire the services of a consulting firm to facilitate the 
plan update.   
 
The City participated in numerous meetings with SBCOEM, the contract consultant, and 
representatives of all eight cities in the county to develop a list of “common” hazards we 
all faced, and objectives to mitigate those hazards.  Once those common hazards were 
identified, the City of Santa Barbara put together a Planning Team to list hazards unique 
to the City and potential mitigation actions to be identified to reduce or eliminate the 
hazardous threat.   
 
Under the supervision of the contract consultant and SBCOEM, the draft Hazard 
Identification and Risk Assessment Plan for each City was reviewed and discussed at 
several meetings during 2011.  Once the individual community draft plans were in the 
“Final Draft” stage, input was sought from community members and the drafts were 
made available for community review and comment.  The City of Santa Barbara made 
our draft plan available through the City’s OES website, and a hard copy was available 
for review at the City’s Office of Emergency Services during regular business hours.   



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of The 2011 Update Of The Santa Barbara County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard 
Mitigation Plan And The City Of Santa Barbara Annex  
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 

 

The community was made aware of the availability of the City’s draft plan through media 
outreach and the July 2011 OES Newsletter.   
 
The City’s “Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment Plan” will become the City of 
Santa Barbara Annex to the 2011 Santa Barbara County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan.  
On September 19, 2011, the contract consultant submitted the City of Santa Barbara’s 
Plan to the California Emergency Management Agency (CalEMA) and the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for review and approval.  On December 29, 
2011, FEMA notified the contract consultant that the cities should adopt their respective 
annexes prior to final FEMA approval. 
 
Links for the public:  
1. 2011 Santa Barbara County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 

www.countyofsb.org/ceo/oes 
2. 2011 City of Santa Barbara Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment Plan, also 

referred to as the City of Santa Barbara Annex to the 2011 Santa Barbara County 
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/NR/rdonlyres/65D253CA-3AB5-4446-B0B0-
59D54D7E12CC/0/SantaBarbara_ReviewDraft_09092011.pdf 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Yolanda McGlinchey, Emergency Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Andrew DiMizio, Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 

http://www.countyofsb.org/ceo/oes
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/NR/rdonlyres/65D253CA-3AB5-4446-B0B0-59D54D7E12CC/0/SantaBarbara_ReviewDraft_09092011.pdf
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/NR/rdonlyres/65D253CA-3AB5-4446-B0B0-59D54D7E12CC/0/SantaBarbara_ReviewDraft_09092011.pdf




City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-1 
September 9, 2011 

Contents 
Section 14  City of Santa Barbara ................................................................................................. 14-2 

14.1  Introduction........................................................................................................................ 14-2 
14.2  Internal Planning Process .................................................................................................. 14-2 

14.2.1  City Local Planning Team Meetings and Outcomes .................................................. 14-3 
14.2.2  Public Involvement .................................................................................................... 14-4 

14.3  Capability Assessment ..................................................................................................... 14-18 
14.3.1  Governance .............................................................................................................. 14-18 
14.3.2  Departmental Responsibilities, Plans, and Capabilities ........................................... 14-19 
14.3.3  City of Santa Barbara Emergency Services Organization ....................................... 14-26 
14.3.4  General Analysis of Capabilities .............................................................................. 14-27 
14.3.5  Legal and Regulatory Capabilities ........................................................................... 14-28 
14.3.6  Fiscal Resources ....................................................................................................... 14-29 
14.3.7  Relevant Plans, Policies, and Ordinances ................................................................ 14-30 

14.4  Hazard Assessment .......................................................................................................... 14-35 
14.4.1  Flood and Coastal Storm Surge ............................................................................... 14-38 
14.4.2  Wildfire .................................................................................................................... 14-38 
14.4.3  Earthquake ............................................................................................................... 14-38 
14.4.4  Landslide/Coastal Erosion ....................................................................................... 14-42 
14.4.5  Dam Failure .............................................................................................................. 14-45 
14.4.6  Tsunami .................................................................................................................... 14-45 

14.5  Vulnerability Assessment ................................................................................................ 14-46 
14.5.1  Critical Facilities and Flood Vulnerability ............................................................... 14-47 
14.5.2  Flood Vulnerability .................................................................................................. 14-53 
14.5.3  Wildfire Vulnerability .............................................................................................. 14-59 
14.5.4  Earthquake Vulnerability ......................................................................................... 14-68 
14.5.5  Landslide Vulnerability ............................................................................................ 14-74 
14.5.6  Dam Failure Vulnerability ....................................................................................... 14-79 
14.5.7  Tsunami Vulnerability ............................................................................................. 14-84 

14.6  Mitigation Strategy .......................................................................................................... 14-89 
14.6.1  Mitigation Priorities ................................................................................................. 14-89 
14.6.2  Mitigation Progress .................................................................................................. 14-90 
14.6.3  Mitigation Approach ................................................................................................ 14-92 
14.6.4  Implementation Plan ................................................................................................ 14-95 

14.7  Plan Maintenance........................................................................................................... 14-111 
14.7.1  Point of Contact ..................................................................................................... 14-111 

14.8  Attachments ................................................................................................................... 14-112 
14.8.1  Santa Barbara City Attachment 1: Meeting Documentation .................................. 14-112 
14.8.2  Santa Barbara City Attachment 2: Outreach Materials .......................................... 14-114 
14.8.3  References .............................................................................................................. 14-116 

 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-2 
September 9, 2011 

 
SECTION 14 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

14.1  INTRODUCTION 
 

This annex was prepared in 2010 – 2011 as part of an update to the Santa Barbara County Multi-
Hazard Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The City of Santa Barbara participated in the 
County wide Mitigation Advisory Committee, reviewed all portions of the previous hazard mitigation 
plan pertaining to the City, and incorporated relevant components into this annex. This annex serves 
as a complete hazard mitigation planning tool for the City of Santa Barbara. It contains updated 
capability assessment information, a new vulnerability assessment, and an updated/revised 
mitigation strategy. The methodology and process for developing this annex is explained throughout 
the following sections. 

 

The City of Santa Barbara is located on the south coast of the County.  Due to the Santa Ynez 
mountain range that blocks colder air from the north, Santa Barbara enjoys mild and pleasant 
weather.  It sits at an elevation of roughly 50 feet above sea level and has a land area of 19 square 
miles.  The city received its name when the California mission Santa Barbara was founded there in 
1786.  The mission was known as the Queen of the Missions due to its beauty and the beauty of its 
surroundings.  Attractions in Santa Barbara include the Waterfront, Downtown retail, entertainment 
and cultural districts, Santa Barbara Museums of Art and Natural History, the Santa Barbara Zoo, 
and special events such Old Spanish Days – Fiesta Santa Barbara. Santa Barbara is the retail, 
tourism, government, education, and medical center of the County.  It is home to the Santa Barbara 
Regional Airport, which provides commercial services for Ventura, Santa Barbara and San Luis 
Obispo Counties. 

 

14.2   INTERNAL PLANNING PROCESS 
 

The City of Santa Barbara participated in the Countywide Mitigation Advisory Committee in 
development of the update to the entire hazard mitigation plan. Information and discussion topics 
raised at the MAC meetings were brought to the City’s Local Planning Team for discussion of 
relevance within the City limits and for this annex. Yolanda McGlinchey, Emergency Services 
Manager, served as the City’s liaison on the MAC and coordinated the collaboration of the Local 
Planning Team.  

Table 14-1 lists the City of Santa Barbara Local Planning Team. These individuals collaborated to 
identify the City’s critical facilities, provide relevant plans, report on progress of city mitigation 
actions and develop the updated mitigation strategy. 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-3 
September 9, 2011 

Table 14-1 City of Santa Barbara Local Planning Team 2011 

Name Title 
Rob Badger Information Systems 
Andrew DiMizio Fire Chief 
John Ledbetter Principal Planner – CDD Planning 
Joe Poire Division Chief – Prevention 
Mick Kronman Waterfront Ops 
Pat Kelly City Engineer/Asst. PW Dir. 
Bettie Weiss City Planner – CDD Planning 
Tom Doolittle IS Manager –Administrative Services 
George Estrella Building Official – CDD Building & Safety 
Santos Escobar Parks Manager – Parks & Recreation 
Rick Fulmer Streets Manager – Public Works 
Chris Hansen Building Inspector/Plans Check Supv. – CDD  
Tracy Lincoln Operations Manager – Airport 
Jill Zachary Asst. Parks & Recreation Director 

 

14.2.1 City Local Planning Team Meetings and Outcomes  

The City of Santa Barbara Local Planning Team (LPT) met regularly during the planning process in 
coordination with the countywide Mitigation Advisory Committee to discuss updates to this plan and 
provide comments on review drafts. The table below summarizes the meetings held within the City of 
Santa Barbara separate from the countywide MAC meetings listed in Section 3. Meeting documentation 
from the City of Santa Barbara may be found in Section 14.8 as Santa Barbara City Attachment 1: 
Meeting Documentation. 

 

Table 14-2 City of Santa Barbara Internal Collaboration Meetings Summary 
Meeting Dates Summary of Discussions 

November 1, 2010 Memo distributed to City Executive Management kicking off the mitigation plan update efforts. 
December 9, 2010 First Local Planning Team Meeting 

Discussion Topics: 
• Plan Update Prerequisites / Requirements 
• Planning Process  
• Risk Assessment 
• Mitigation Strategies 
• City’s Goals and Objectives – 2005 

 
March 9, 2011 Second Local Planning Team Meeting 

Discussion Topics: 
• Modifications to the Hazard Ranking  
• Comments on the revised County Goals/Objectives for 2011 
• City Goals/Objectives for 2011 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-4 
September 9, 2011 

Meeting Dates Summary of Discussions 
• Comments on the draft public survey 

June 27, 2011 Third Local Planning Team Meeting 

Discussion Topics: 

• Review draft annex 

• Mitigation Strategies 

• Plan Maintenance 

August 31, 2011 Fourth Local Planning Team Meeting 

Discussion Topics: 

• Mitigation Action Review & Prioritization 

• Draft Plan Review & Comments 

  

 

In addition to these meetings, the LPT reviewed the draft documents, incorporated comments and 
track changes, and collaborated via email and phone to prepare the updated annex. 

 

14.2.2 Public Involvement  

In March 2011, an online survey was distributed county-wide to solicit public input regarding the 
concern for risk to natural hazard events and suggestions for how local government could minimize 
the risk. The City of Santa Barbara notified residents and businesses of the opportunity to participate 
in the survey via the City’s website. The City also sent out information on the revision of the LHMP 
via news release in March 2011 and the Santa Barbara Get Ready Newsletter in April 2011.  

A copy of the survey is included in County Appendix 3C. Copies of the City’s outreach materials are 
included in Section 14.8, Santa Barbara City Attachment 2: Outreach Materials.  

On March 8, 2011, the City’s OES Manager and a County OEM Manager were both interviewed on 
local radio Station 1290 AM. They were interviewed on the Wildland Residents Association 
Community Alert Program.  

Survey Results 

The survey respondents from the City of Santa Barbara identified earthquake and wildfire as the two 
hazards of primary concern. Flooding follows as a secondary concern. Overall, the City of Santa 
Barbara’s Local Planning Group found that all three, earthquake, wildfire, and flooding, were the 
hazards of primary concern. That rationale is presented in Section 14.4.  

Santa Barbara City  respondents indicated they have made improvements to their property to reduce 
risk of damage (refer to Question 3 below) including implementing and/or maintaining defensible 
space around their properties to reduce damage from wildfires, roof retrofitting using fire resistant 
material, installing backflow prevention devices, performing seismic retrofits, improving drainage, 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-5 
September 9, 2011 

and additional efforts. The results of the survey provide valuable information for the City of Santa 
Barbara as they continue in their mitigation efforts. These responses may be used as a bench mark for 
future measurements of improvement.  For example, the City may choose to focus on educational 
outreach about what homeowners and renters can do to reduce future damage from natural hazards. 
After this type of implementation, a similar survey may be administered to validate the progress and 
confirm that more residents have implemented mitigation practices. 

The survey allowed the City of Santa Barbara an opportunity to expand the list of stakeholders. 
Respondents suggested additional agencies/organizations to be informed of the hazard mitigation 
planning process, provided contact information and will be given an opportunity to review/comment 
on the complete draft prior to adoption. As the City continues to increase awareness of hazard 
mitigation, the suggested stakeholders (item 21 below) will be considered for involvement in future 
mitigation planning discussions. 

The City of Santa Barbara will consider the recommendations provided by survey respondents (items 
8 and 20 below) regarding how the local government and the County can help residents prepare for 
an event, throughout the life of this plan and prioritize those that can be implemented efficiently and 
effectively.  

The survey responses received from the City of Santa Barbara residents are summarized below: 

1. 125 out of 510 survey respondents were from the City of Santa Barbara. 2 of the responses 
were received in Spanish. 

2. Respondents were asked which three hazards, out of the seven hazards the MAC identified, 
are of most concern to their neighborhood or home.  Below are responses from residents of 
Santa Barbara City (in order of most responses): 

Hazard 
Number of 
Responses 

Earthquake 115 

Wildfire 94 

Flooding (including coastal surge) 51 

Landslide/Coastal Erosion 35 

Tsunami 29 

Additional Hazards* 19 

Agriculture (pests and disease) 13 

Dam Failure 11 

* Respondents noted the following additional hazards:   

• High Winds, potential for trees to fall 
• Fire starting in Westside hills, Mesa hillsides, etc. (I'm not concerned about fire 

spreading from the Riviera across town to my area.) 
• Natural Gas Line explosion 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-6 
September 9, 2011 

• Water pollution, soil pollution, and air pollution 
• Radon 
• Evacuation, from single-family and multiple residences, commercial structures and 

South Coast generally; traffic overflow during an emergency; access to property is 
difficult or impossible for emergency vehicles 

• Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant, Vandenberg AFB 
• Railroad derailment, nuclear radiation from Diablo Canyon accident? 
• Robberies, burglaries and gangs. 

 

3. Respondents were asked what they are doing to their property or within their home to reduce 
future damage from the hazards identified above.  Below is a summary of responses: 

Property Mitigation Responses 

Seismic retrofit of the structure and / or foundation 8 

House elevation or first floor modification to prevent flood damage 6 

Installed backflow prevention device(s) 15 

Defensible space landscaping (clear vegetation around house to reduce 
wildfire risk) 32 

Roof retrofit using fire resistant material 23 

Installation of fire sprinklers 5 

Installation of fire hydrant or above ground water storage tank 2 

Strengthened openings (Doors, windows, and/or garage door to reduce high-
hazard wind risk) 11 

Other (please specify) 40 

*The responses to “Other” were:  

• Renter or condominium owner with no control over improvement projects. 
(installation of dual pane windows, receive sand bags annually) 

• Will clear more vegetation around house.  I have removed one juniper or cypress tree 
that was fully mature, dense and large, over hanging roof and was planted about 6 
feet from my house.  My other shrubs and flowers are less oily leaved and wouldn't 
burn as fast as a conifer. 

• bioswale installation;  French drain. 
• Fire extinguishers and emergency food and water. 
• shear wall construction 
• Weed abatement 
• Turning my lawn into a year-round edible garden...my reasoning is that I will have 

more "supplies" should a disaster occur and be less of a burden on NGO/govt 
assistance. 

• I live in a retirement home, and intend to bring these matters before its management 
• exterior tiling and sump pump 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-7 
September 9, 2011 

• HUD housing.....safety measures 
• Our house was rebuilt 3 years ago. 
• Prayer, organizing neighborhood to be safe, secure 

 

4.  Respondents were asked if a severe hazard event occurred today, such that all services were cut 
off from their home and they were unable to leave or access a store for 72 hours, which items they 
would have readily available.  Below is a summary of responses from Santa Barbara City 
respondents: 

 

Item that is Readily Available Responses 

Potable Water (3 gallons per person) 72 

Cooking and eating utensils 119 

Can Opener 118 

Canned / Non-perishable Foods (ready to eat) 112 

Gas grill / Camping stove 76 

Extra Medications 68 

First Aid Kit/Supplies 100 

Portable AM/FM Radio (solar powered, hand crank,or batteries) 80 

Handheld "Walkie-Talkie" Radios (with batteries) 25 

Important Family Photos/Documentation in a water and fire proof 
container 30 

Extra Clothes and Shoes 95 

Blanket(s)/ Sleeping Bag(s) 106 

Cash 53 

Flashlight (with batteries) 107 

Gasoline 23 

Telephone (with batteries) 69 

Pet Supplies 46 

What else do you have in your emergency kit?* 27 

* Respondents noted the following additional items in their emergency kits:  

• Dust masks 
• Gloves, matches. 
• eye drops, moist towelettes... 
• Games for kids, toys for dog 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-8 
September 9, 2011 

• Candles, toilet paper, etc. 
• Extra batteries, lanterns 
• portable water purifier 
• Pet first aid kit (Red Cross Certified) w/extra meds/flea treatment, and at least two 

weeks of pet food and water. 
• Ace bandages, kotex pads for deep cuts, bandage tape, latex gloves, heavy boots, 

burn cream 
• MREs, thermal blanket, diapers, wipes 
• Solar cell phone charger 
• Tent, for nights when aftershocks might occur.   
• Solar panel with storage battery and a.c. inverter. 
• Extra meds are a problem when insurance pays  only for a 1 month supply 
• fire extinguisher 
• Photos & documentation in a water & fire proof container needed. 
• Generator, satellite phone 
• Thermal blanket, toilet paper, battery powered TV, handcranked flashlight, whistle, 

power-off lights 
• Crow bar, wrench, wood & matches, portable tv and batteries. 
• A gun and ammo. 
• Bible, Personal responsibility and knowledge 

 

5. Respondents were asked if they have a plan for evacuating large animals and pets.  Below is a 
summary of responses: 

• 26, or 21.7% of respondents, answered that they have a plan for evacuating their 
pets (cats, dogs, etc). 

• 1, or 0.8% of respondents, answered that they have a plan for evacuating large 
animals (horses, cows, etc). 

• 23, or 19.17% of respondents, answered that they have pets but have not planned 
for their evacuation. 

• 1, or 0.8% of respondents, answered that they have large animals but have not 
planned for their evacuation. 

• 69, or 57.5% of respondents, answered that they have no large animals or pets. 

 

6.  Respondents were asked if they are familiar with the special needs of their neighbors in the event 
of a disaster situation.  Below is a summary of responses: 

• 45, or 37.5% of respondents, indicated that they are familiar with the special needs 
of their neighbors.   

• 75, or 62.5% of respondents, indicated that they are not familiar with the special 
needs of their neighbors. 

 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-9 
September 9, 2011 

7. Respondents were asked if they are a trained member of their Community Emergency Response 
Team (CERT).  Below is a summary of responses: 

• 21, or 18.3% of respondents, indicated that they are part of CERT. 

• 42, or 36.5% of respondents, indicated that they are not a part of CERT, but 
would like to learn more about CERT. 

• 52, or 45.2% of respondents, indicated that they are not interested in being a part 
of CERT. 

Respondents were asked to share why they are a trained CERT member, or why they are not part of 
CERT.  The received responses are listed below: 

• City employee 
• I am a member of the City of Santa Barbara PIO for the EOC. 
• TRAINED IN FIRST-AID. 
• As a city employee I am a potential emergency employee.  Maybe we should all have 

CERT training. 
• I was trained by the Red Cross years ago....when I authored the City Seismic Safety 

Ordinance and served as Seismic Program Coordinator for the City Building & 
Safety Division 

• I’m young and strong and not afraid and would want to help in case of emergency 
• Never heard of it. 
• Trained as part of my job in Industrial Emergency Response 
• Not yet as I have training from other sources/agencies/CBOs 

 

8. Respondents were asked what the most important thing local government can do to help 
communities be more prepared for a disaster.  Below is a summary of responses: 

Things Local Government can do to help prepare 
Number of 
Responses 

Disseminate effective emergency notifications and 
communication 101 

Provide training and education to residents and business 
owners on how they can reduce future damage 67 

Community outreach regarding emergency preparedness 85 

Being aware of special needs and vulnerable populations 59 

Make a plan to use volunteer residents to help in a disaster 78 

Other 14 

 

9.  Respondents were asked if they live in an apartment building or home with a living space above a 
garage or parking area.  

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-10 
September 9, 2011 

• 97, or 80.2% of respondents, indicated that they do not live in an apartment or home 
with living space above a garage or parking area.   

• 24, or 19.8% of respondents, indicated that they do live in an apartment building or 
home with living space above a garage or parking area.   

 

Those respondents who indicated that they do live in an apartment building or home with living 
space above the garage or parking area were asked to describe their level of concern for the building 
to collapse in a large earthquake event.  10 respondents indicated that they are “Extremely 
Concerned”, 3 respondents indicated that they have “High Concern”, 10 respondents indicated that 
they have “Moderate Concern”, 7 respondents indicated that they have “Little Concern”, 5 
respondents indicated that they have “No Concern”, 50 respondents indicated that the question was 
“Not Applicable” and 40 respondents skipped this question. 

 

10. Respondents who are homeowners were asked if they have adequate homeowners insurance to 
cover the hazards that could impact their home.  Below is a summary of responses: 

 

Answer Responses

Yes, my insurance coverage should be adequate 51 

No, I don't believe my insurance coverage would be adequate for a major disaster 19 

Unsure 6 

I do not have an insurance policy 1 

Not applicable, I rent my current residence 40 

 

11. Respondents who are renters were asked if they have renter’s insurance.  Below is a summary of 
responses: 

 

Answer Responses

Yes 21 

No 31 

Not applicable, I own my residence. 57 

 

12. Respondents were asked if they have earthquake insurance. Below is a summary of responses: 

 

Answer  Responses

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-11 
September 9, 2011 

Yes, I own my home and have earthquake insurance. 26 

Yes, I rent my home and have earthquake insurance. 6 

No, but I am interested in reviewing earthquake insurance options. 23 

No, earthquake insurance is too expensive. 46 

No, I do not need earthquake insurance. 18 

 

13.  Respondents were asked if they have flood insurance. Below is a summary of responses: 

 

Answer Responses

Yes, I own my home and have flood insurance. 20 

Yes, I rent my home and have flood insurance. 6 

No, but I am interested in reviewing flood insurance options. 14 

No, I do not need flood insurance 77 

 

14. Respondents were asked to note any additional insurance listed for their home or property. 

• Car insurance only 
• Fire insurance, home owners insurance for interior of condo 
• I’m willing to lose it all....nice fresh start! 
• Liability policy 
• High Fire Zone Insurance 
• Umbrella 
• As a renter can we get flood insurance? 
• Earthquake, fire, liability but I earthquake only covers so much and unsure whether 

insurance companies will actually come through.  I own a home in New Orleans as 
well and insurance companies paying in major disaster is iffy (ie a major disaster is 
not 800 or less burned homes) once a disaster gets into the thousands damaged or 
destroyed category unsure 

• Condominium Insurance 
• Insurance needs to be more affordable 

 

15.  Respondents were asked if they work in Santa Barbara County.   

• 108, or 88.5% of respondents, indicated that they do work in Santa Barbara County.   

• 14, or 11.5% of respondents, indicated that they do not work in Santa Barbara 
County.   

 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-12 
September 9, 2011 

16.  Respondents were asked if their place of work is in an area susceptible to natural hazards.  
Below is a list of natural hazards and responses from survey respondents: 

 

Natural Hazard Response

High-risk flood zone 37 

Earthquake fault zone 44 

Liquefaction zone 30 

Landslide Risk Area 5 

Wildland Urban Interface (wildfire risk area) 19 

I don't know 28 

Other* 20 

*The responses to “Other” were:  

• Tsunami/ Tsunami Run-up zone 
• Not sure about the fault zone, but probably near 
• Fire danger and ocean flooding possible 
• It's not in the high-risk flood zone, landslide risk area, or Wildland Urban Interface.  I 

don't know if it's in a fault zone or liquefaction zone. 
• Retired 
• Railroad accident involving toxic chemicals 
• Gangs and the homeless are hazards in downtown SB 

 

17.  Respondents were asked if their employer has a plan for disaster recovery in place.   

• 88, or 79.3% of respondents, indicated that their employer does have a disaster 
recovery plan in place.  

• 9, or 8.1% of respondents, indicated that their employer does not have a disaster 
recovery plan in place.  

• 14 respondents were unsure if their employer has a disaster recovery plan in place.   

• 14 respondents skipped this question. 

 

18. Respondents were asked if their employer has a workforce communications plan to implement 
following a disaster so they may contact their employees.   

• 93, or 83.8% of respondents, indicated that their employer does have a workforce 
communications plan.  

• 5, or 4.5% of respondents, indicated that their employer does not have a workforce 
communications plan.  

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-13 
September 9, 2011 

• 13, or 11.7% of respondents, indicated that they are unsure if their employer has a 
workforce communications plan.  

• 14respondent skipped this question. 

 

19. Respondents were asked to list any studies that they are aware of being conducted within their 
community or the county regarding the risk to future hazard events. 22 respondents replied to this 
question.  These answers are summarized below.  4 respondents skipped this question. 

• Hoover Maps 
• Seismic Retrofit Program 
• I know the City is currently working on several bridge replacement projects and 

structural upgrades to public parking structures to meet seismic requirements.  I 
believe the Fire Dept works on defensible space programs for home owners in high 
fire areas. 

• Tsunami Runup Map 
• FEMA Flood Maps 
• Liquefaction Zones 
• Wildland Fire Hazard Areas 
• Unreinforced masonry survey and retrofitting 
• Disaster Mitigation Plan for the City of SB. 
• I am familiar with most of the city documents that pertain to environmental resources 

and hazards. 
• Geologic mapping by others 
• Dam inundation analyses but the information published in the New Press was not 

very useful as the map was of poor quality and there was no information about 
availability of federal flood insurance for houses in this inundation area.  Would 
federal flood insurance even cover damage resulting from such a dam failure? 

• I have a map of former oil wells on the mesa 
• Newspaper article on San Roque Dam failure 

 

20. Respondents were asked what recommendations they have for Santa Barbara County and the 
incorporated cities to improve identification, prioritization, and implementation of actions intended to 
reduce future damage and increase resiliency.  The following recommendations were received: 

Recommendations for Santa Barbara County 
Number of 
Responses 

Perform outreach to ensure people are aware of their 
environment and the inherent risks 69 

Provide training and materials on how residents can be 
prepared for the identified risks 75 

Enforce/update building codes 49 

Other* 20 

EXHIBIT



City of Santa Barbara Annex to Santa Barbara County 2011 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan  Page 14-14 
September 9, 2011 

The responses to “Other” were:  

• Distributing emergency preparedness kits with water, canned food, batteries, etc., that 
people could keep in their vehicles or homes would be a good thing - but expensive - 
perhaps distribution could prioritize the most vulnerable and low income families. 

• Westside residences in the W. Valerio, TV hills, Manitou Road,  Mesa, Portesuello, 
Bel Air need to be AS AWARE of fire danger as the RIVIERA!! 

• I believe that people have a responsibility to be aware of what they can do to be 
prepared for an emergency.  The government must be prepared on how to respond, 
identifying hospitals, care facilities that will need special assistance. 

• Create one central location (phone#/website) where people can go for info.  Give 
away free emergency kits/supplies at community events. 

• Seems that if someone has enough money, current code requirements are deviated to 
accommodate them.  Our home has one drive way serving 5 homes with potential for 
a 6th.  This has made for a very dangerous situation for all who live there.  Builders 
should have been required to make a separate access for the new homes. 

• Require employers with 25 or more employees to have a disaster management plan to 
implement. 

• City of Santa Barbara needs a comprehensive social media communication 
infrastructure for both emergency and non-emergency communication.   If one were 
in place and used, then in the event of an emergency, communication would be more 
effective. 

• materials to read from.....not many will attend outreach events 

• The "evacuation" plan only worked because the Jesusita Fire didn’t blow into town... 
you do know that?  Half the intersections out on Wednesday, with half the town in 
evacuation zone, and the rest of the traffic stuffed into the other half of town. 

• THERE IS FAR TOO LITTLE BUILDING ENFORCEMENT IN SANTA 
BARBARA CITY. 

• Make available emergency service workers (i.e. police, fire or emergency services) 
reps to attend and discuss disaster preparedness at Neighborhood group meetings and 
advertise the service. 

• I am a California certified engineering geologist.  We should have a program of  local 
volunteer geologists and engineers (civil and structural) to assist the County on an as 
needed basis in event of a major disaster 

• More "training and materials" (as above) to limit human panic and loss in major 
catastrophes. 

• I would like to know about ways of bracing my 3-car garage that has a heavy tile roof 
but no ceiling.  Does anyone sell or install telescoping steel beams that can brace such 
a structure?   

EXHIBIT















































































































































































































































































































Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
                                                                                                                   

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement For Tertiary Filtration Assessment 

And Design 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with Camp Dresser McKee & Smith, Inc., in the amount of $449,795 for 
engineering assessment and preliminary design services for the recycled water filtration 
facility, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $44,980 
for extra services of Camp Dresser McKee & Smith, Inc. that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City’s recycled water facility was constructed in 1989.  It was one of the first 
recycled water facilities and distribution systems in California. The facility is located at 
the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant. Over time, the facility has been subject to 
corrosion and is now in need of significant refurbishment and optimization to allow the 
effective production of recycled water.  There are also safety and operational design 
elements that need to be modified to eliminate potential problems with operation of the 
facility. 
 
The City submitted requests for proposals to qualified firms and received four proposals 
from engineering firms interested in performing this engineering assessment and 
preliminary design work.  Staff interviewed these four firms and Camp Dresser McKee & 
Smith Inc. (CDM Smith Inc.) was recommended to perform this work. 
 
CDM Smith Inc. will evaluate existing recycled water treatment processes and will 
develop recommendations for proposed treatment process changes.  CDM Smith Inc. is 
tasked with making recommendations for improving the filtration facility and recycled 
water system performance.  CDM Smith Inc. will also evaluate the best approach and 
estimate the cost of adding a demineralization process to recycled water to reduce the 
dissolved solid concentration in the water and thereby reduce or eliminate the need for 



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Agreement For Tertiary Filtration Assessment And Design 
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 

 

blending with potable water.  The consultant will use recommendations from the 
assessment study to develop an implementation plan. 
Subsequently, CDM Smith Inc. will prepare preliminary design of the proposed projects 
to further define the recommended technical improvements.  These preliminary design 
work products will be used to phase subsequent specific recycled water filtration facility 
final design and construction projects in the coming years so as to optimize the City’s 
capital investment in the recycled water system.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This project was anticipated, and there are adequate appropriated funds in the Water 
Capital Fund for this professional engineering and scientific assessment work. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Recycled water is an important part of our water supply and helps to avoid the need to 
develop expensive new water supplies that would likely have high energy costs and 
potentially have other environmental impacts.  
 
At their meeting of December 12, 2011, the Board of Water Commissioners voted 3-0-0 
to approve staff’s recommendation.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Christopher J. Toth, Wastewater System Manager/CJT/avb 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  570.08 
 

 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Recreation Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Reppointment Of Youth Intern, Michael Yi, To Parks And Recreation 

Commission   
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council reappoint youth intern Michael Yi to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission. 
 
DISCUSSION:   
 
On February 7, 1995, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 95-025 that established 
a Youth Intern Program for Charter Boards and Commissions.  The Resolution was 
established to expand the opportunities for City youth residents to participate in the 
City’s governmental and advisory role process. 
 
On June 6, 2000, Council adopted Resolution 00-044 rescinding Resolution No. 95-025, 
extending the Youth Intern Program to high school student volunteers who reside within 
the Santa Barbara High School District or attend other high schools within the City limits 
to learn firsthand how public decisions are made, and how City departments function in 
providing public services while at the same time providing community service that may 
qualify for academic credit. The resolution allows for the youth to serve two one-year 
terms.  
 
Michael Yi, was interviewed and appointed in January 2011, and has been serving as 
the youth intern for the Parks and Recreation Commission for the past year. 
 
Michael Yi                       
 
Michael Yi is a senior at Dos Pueblos High School with a strong commitment to youth 
leadership and community service.  Highly recommended by his advisor on the 
Coalition of Youth Advocates, Michael is described as “setting a pristine example for his 
peers; setting a standard of leadership, commitment, and encouragement” that others 
strive to emulate.  Michael currently serves on the Executive Committee for the Santa 
Barbara Youth Council, holding the office of 2nd Vice Chair.   Since his appointment as 
Youth Intern, he has continued to give back to the community with over 20 hours of 
monthly community service.  In addition to interning on the Parks and Recreation 



Council Agenda Report 
Reappointment Of Youth Intern, Michael Yi, To Parks And Recreation Commission   
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Commission, Michael is an intern in the Mayor’s office for the City of Santa Barbara.  He 
is a recent finalist for the National Merit’s Scholarship and continues to advocate for 
teens through involvement with various non-profit organizations in the community.   
   
The Parks and Recreation Commission has expressed its appreciation for the youth 
internship program and Michael has received good comments and commendation from 
both staff and Commissioners.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Susan C. Young, Neighborhood and Outreach Services   

Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  330.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Patrol Division, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Tactical Patrol Rifle Project – Motor Detail 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Accept a donation in the amount of $23,220 from the Santa Barbara Police 

Foundation; and 
B. Appropriate the donation of $23,220 from the Santa Barbara Police Foundation to 

the Police Asset Forfeiture and Miscellaneous Grants Fund for the purchase and 
installation of motorcycle patrol rifles. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In March 2002, the Santa Barbara Police Department deployed AR-15 semi-automatic 
rifles in all black and white patrol units.  The AR-15 was issued to field officers in order 
to provide superior capability to protect themselves and citizens when coming into 
contact with heavily armed criminals. 
 
Santa Barbara Police Department officers assigned to motorcycle duty are considered 
“first responders,” and have the same need for a patrol rifle as officers assigned to black 
and white patrol vehicles.  Motorcycle units are often dispatched and respond to the 
same high priority calls as patrol officers, often being the first to arrive on scene due to 
their mobility.  Currently, when the motor officers arrive to these dangerous incidents, 
they are only armed with their handgun and have no vehicle to use as 
cover/concealment.  Equipping our motor officers with a patrol rifle will provide them 
additional officer safety and give them a tactical advantage against armed suspects in 
order to protect the citizens of our community. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for this item will come entirely from the Santa Barbara Police Foundation’s 
donation and no City funds will be used. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Tactical Patrol Rifle Project – Motor Detail 
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 

 

PREPARED BY: Lieutenant Brent Mandrell, Patrol Division 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  680.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendment For Veronica Meadows Specific Plan 

And Veronica Meadows Bridge Ballot Measure 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Direct City Clerk’s staff and the City Attorney to prepare the necessary 

resolutions required to call a special City election for Tuesday, June 5, 2012, and 
to consolidate the City election with the statewide primary election being 
conducted by the County of Santa Barbara, to place a ballot measure before City 
voters on whether the City Council should grant a construction right-of-way for a 
City street and bridge to be constructed across Arroyo Burro Creek utilizing a 
corner of City-owned park open space property adjacent to Las Positas Road in 
order to provide access for the Veronica Meadows residential subdivision project 
as required by City Charter §520; and 

 
B. Defer the Council’s consideration of the adoption of An Ordinance of the Council of 

the City of Santa Barbara Amending Municipal Code Title 28 by Amending Chapter 
28.50, the “Veronica Meadows Specific Plan,” until after the special City election of 
June 5, 2012. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On November 22, 2011, the City Council introduced an Ordinance to amend Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 28.50, the “Veronica Meadows Specific Plan.”  The item 
was scheduled for adoption on December 6, 2011; however, the adoption was continued 
to a future Council agenda so that all seven Council members could be present because 
the ordinance adoption requires a five vote majority.   As a result of staff and City Attorney 
discussions with the owners of the property that is the subject of this Specific Plan, staff is 
now recommending that Council defer consideration of the Veronica Meadows Specific 
Plan ordinance (as modified by the State Coastal Commission) until after a June 5, 2012, 
Special Election. Refer to Attachment 1 for a complete discussion of the ordinance 
amendment. 



Council Agenda Report 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment For Veronica Meadows Specific Plan And Veronica 
Meadows Bridge Ballot Measure Council Meeting Date 
Page 2 

 

 
 
The deferment will allow for a City ballot measure to be included in that election, as 
required by City Charter §520, on whether the City Council should grant a construction 
right-of-way for a City street and a bridge to be constructed across Arroyo Burro Creek, 
utilizing a corner of City-owned park open space property adjacent to Las Positas Road, 
in order to provide access for the Veronica Meadows residential subdivision project. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
In preparing the paperwork for placing a Veronica Meadows bridge ballot measure on 
the June 2012 ballot, staff recommends that the owners of the Veronica Meadows 
subdivision agree to reimburse the City for 100% of the election cost by posting a cash 
deposit for the estimated full cost for consolidating this special City election with the 
statewide primary.  This reimbursement deposit requirement would be a pre-condition to 
action by the City Council to officially call the Special Election. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Council Agenda Report dated November 22, 2011 
 
PREPARED BY: Allison De Busk, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  680.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 22, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments For Veronica Meadows Specific Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Acknowledging Receipt of the California Coastal Commission’s Resolution 
of Certification, Accepting and Agreeing to Suggested Modifications for the Final 
Certification, and Agreeing to Issue Coastal Development Permits for the Total 
Area Included in the Certified Local Coastal Program; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Municipal Code Title 28 by 
Amending Chapter 28.50, the “Veronica Meadows Specific Plan.” 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted Local Coastal Program (LCP) and Zoning 
Ordinance Amendments for the Veronica Meadows Specific Plan Area (SP-9), located 
north of the terminus of Alan Road and west of Las Positas Road.  On August 5, 2008, 
City Staff submitted the LCP Amendment application to the California Coastal 
Commission (CCC) for approval.  On August 12, 2010, the CCC approved the City’s 
application with nine Suggested Modifications.   
 
Suggested Modifications 1 and 2 amend the City’s Local Coastal Plan description of 
Component 1 (Western City Limit to Arroyo Burro Creek) to include discussion of the 
project site.  Suggested Modifications 3 through 9 are changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
for the Veronica Meadows Specific Plan Area (Chapter 28.50 – SP-9 Zone).  The CCC 
changes to the Zoning Ordinance are more protective of environmental resources in the 
coastal zone, and, primarily, create a larger creek buffer and reduce the uses allowed 
within the creek buffer.  As such, staff is supportive of the Suggested Modifications. 
 
These CCC Suggested Modifications to the City’s application require that the Council 
introduce and adopt an ordinance amending the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 28.50), 
and adopt a Resolution accepting proposed changes to our LCP text.  The only other 

         ATTACHMENT 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 2 

2 
 

changes proposed to the Ordinance are staff recommendations to avoid unintended 
consequences of the CCC’s Suggested Modifications on those portions of the Specific 
Plan area that are located outside the coastal zone, and to simplify the exhibits to facilitate 
future implementation of the Ordinance. 
 
This Council Agenda Report summarizes the CCC’s action and recommends that the City 
accept the Suggested Modifications.  The Ordinance changes would become effective 
once the CCC certifies the City’s final actions.  The City Council must take action on the 
CCC Suggested Modifications by February 12, 2012. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City processed the Veronica Meadows development project along with the 
annexation, zoning amendment, and General Plan/Local Coastal Plan Amendment for 
the project site.  The Local Coastal Program (LCP) amendment approved by Council in 
June 2008 established zoning [Veronica Meadows Specific Plan (SP-9) and Coastal 
Overlay Zone (S-D-3)] and land use designations (Residential – 2 units per acre, 
Buffer/Stream and Pedestrian/Equestrian) for the portion of the Veronica Meadows 
property located in the coastal zone.  The development project itself was also approved 
in June 2008, but is not currently before the City Council.  The only action requested 
today is a legislative land use designation with respect to the City’s LCP.  However, 
given the project’s long and somewhat complex history, a complete project description 
and chronology are provided below.  Please refer to the Resolution and Ordinance for 
the actions currently requested of the Council.   
 
Project Description 
 
In June 2008, the City Council approved a tentative subdivision map and coastal 
development permit for the following development on the project site: 
 
Subdivision of the project site into 25 residential parcels and construction of 25 units, three 
of which are located at the terminus of Alan Road (proposed cul-de-sac), three of which 
are located immediately north of the cul-de-sac homes, and 19 homes in the main 
development loop.  Two of the homes are affordable to middle-income homebuyers at 
170% of the Area Median Income.  The residential lots range in size from approximately 
5,000 to 9,600 square feet. The remaining lots are comprised of common open space 
areas and public roads.  Generally, the project includes two-story single-family homes, 
each with a maximum of 2,500 to 3,800 square feet of living area.  A duplex-style unit is 
proposed to serve as the affordable units, with each unit approximately 1,000 square feet 
in size. 
   
The site plan was shaped by a desire to cluster the residences to avoid encroaching on 
the site’s steep slopes and creek.  A setback of 100 feet from the top of creek bank to all 
residential structures was required. 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 3 

3 
 

The project also includes a comprehensive creek stabilization and restoration plan for 
approximately 1,800 linear feet of Arroyo Burro Creek adjacent to the development site, 
and restoration work on the adjacent City-owned parcel.   
 
Site access to all but three lots is provided via a public bridge over Arroyo Burro Creek that 
intersects with Las Positas Road and connects to the new public street serving the 
development.  The remaining three homes are accessed from the end of Alan Road.  A 
public pedestrian path along the western edge of the creek provides pedestrian and 
bicycle access from Alan Road to Las Positas Road.  
 
History / Chronology 
 
The project site has a long history of review with the City.  The approved project involved 
the annexation of approximately 50.5 acres of land, located between Campanil Hill and 
Las Positas Road, from an unincorporated portion of Santa Barbara County to the City, 
and a residential subdivision.  As part of the annexation, the lots received General Plan, 
Coastal Plan and zoning designations.  Specific Plan 9 (Veronica Meadows Specific Plan) 
was adopted as the site’s zoning designation.  Because a portion of the site is located 
within the coastal zone, the California Coastal Commission (CCC) must certify the City’s 
proposed Coastal Plan and land use designations before they can become effective in the 
coastal zone. 
 
The following is a summary of the most relevant recent history: 
 
• December 1, 2005 – Planning Commission certified the Final EIR and referred the 

project (23-unit subdivision with access via a bridge from Las Positas Road), to the City 
Council for a decision due to a deadlock (3-3).   
 

• March 2006 – City Council reviewed the project and directed the applicant to reduce 
the number of residential units, provide all vehicular access via Alan Road, and provide 
a pedestrian/bicycle bridge across Arroyo Burro Creek.   
 

• April - September 2006 – A revised version of the project (15 units with all vehicular 
access from Alan Road, and a pedestrian bridge across Arroyo Burro Creek) was 
reviewed by the ABR, the Park and Recreation Commissions, the Creeks Advisory 
Committee and the Planning Commission.   
 

• October 3, 2006 – City Council reviewed the revised project (15 units with all vehicular 
access from Alan Road, and a pedestrian bridge across Arroyo Burro Creek) and 
continued the item, with the direction to return with a project design and density similar 
to the prior 23-unit project (including a bridge for vehicular and pedestrian access from 
Las Positas, a traffic signal at Las Positas Road/bridge intersection and an affordable 
housing component of 2 to 4 units).   
 

• December 2006 – City Council certified the EIR, approved a 25-unit project that 
included a bridge for vehicular and pedestrian access from Las Positas, a traffic signal 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 4 

4 
 

at Las Positas Road/bridge intersection and 2 affordable housing units) and adopted 
the Ordinance initiating the annexation and adopting proposed zoning, General Plan 
Map and Coastal Plan Map amendments.  This decision was litigated in Santa Barbara 
Superior Court. 
 

• January 2008, SB Superior Court invalidated the City approvals and EIR certification, 
and directed that the City revise the EIR before reconsidering the proposed project.   
 

• February 2008 – City Council rescinded project approvals in accordance with the court 
direction received in January 2008. 
 

• March 14, 2008 – Draft Revised EIR released.   
 

• April 17, 2008 – Planning Commission held an environmental hearing on the Draft 
Revised EIR.   
 

• May 15, 2008 – Planning Commission certified the Final EIR.   
 

• June 2008 – City Council approved the subdivision project (25 residential lots – refer to 
Project Description above for a complete description) and adopted all associated 
Resolutions and Ordinances to allow the annexation of the property to the City. 
 

• July 3, 2008 – LAFCO approved annexation. 
 

• July 14, 2009 – Annexation completed. 
 

The property has been officially annexed into the City, and is zoned SP-9 – Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan.  However, the portion of the property located within the coastal 
zone remains without zoning or a land use designation until the CCC finally approves the 
site’s land use and coastal land use designations.   
 
On August 12, 2010, the CCC approved the LCP amendment application with the 
Suggested Modifications discussed below, and a one year time extension was approved 
by the CCC on February 10, 2011.  Prior to the final certification of the LCP Amendment 
by the CCC, the City Council must adopt a revised ordinance that reflects the CCC’s 
Suggested Modifications.   
 
Coastal Commission Suggested Modifications 
 
While the City’s LCP Amendment put forth goals from a local perspective, it is the role of 
the Coastal Commission to look at broader statewide issues for consistency with the 
Coastal Act and the greatest protection of coastal resources.   
 
Because the CCC was not reviewing the actual development of the site, but rather just the 
language of the LCP and Zoning Ordinance, the CCC proposed changes to the Zoning 
Ordinance (SP-9) that would ensure that certain environmental protections (e.g. integrated 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 5 

5 
 

pest management, lighting, restoration and stabilization, erosion control, storm water 
management, etc.) would occur.  Many of these issues were addressed in the project’s 
Environmental Impact Report, and were included as mitigation measures and/or conditions 
of approval for the project itself.   
 
The CCC changes to the Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 28.50) are more protective of 
environmental resources in the coastal zone, and, primarily, create a larger creek buffer 
and reduce the uses allowed within the creek buffer.  City staff and the applicant worked 
with CCC staff through the development of the proposed changes and attended the 
CCC hearing on August 12, 2010.  The proposed Modifications are acceptable to staff. 
 
In the proposed Ordinance, Coastal Commission changes are indicated by underline for 
added text and strikeout for deleted text, and City staff changes are indicated by double 
underline for added text and strikeout with underline for deleted text.  Staff changes are 
merely meant to clarify and aid in future implementation of the Ordinance. 
 
Suggested Modification 1 – amends the City’s Local Coastal Plan description of 
Component 1 (Western City Limit to Arroyo Burro Creek) to include discussion of the 
project site (refer to Attachment 3, p. 1-2 for exact text).   
 
Suggested Modification 2 – amends the Local Coastal Plan sub-component analysis of 
Component 1 (relative to locating new development) to address the project site (refer to 
Attachment 3, p. 2-3 for exact text).   
 
Suggested Modification 3 – amends the “Uses Permitted” section of the Zoning 
Ordinance to add two new subsections (the “Creek Buffer & Limited Activity Zone” and 
the “Creek Buffer”) to limit the types of uses allowed within 100 feet of the creek/riparian 
habitat to uses such as a public trail (5 feet wide), a multi-use public access way (16 
feet wide), utility lines, a gazebo for, common open space and passive recreational use, 
fencing, creek stabilization and maintenance, water quality improvements.  This is to 
ensure that an adequate buffer between residential development and the riparian 
habitat is provided.  City Staff amended the labeling on Map A to give each sub-area a 
distinct reference (i.e. Area 1 (Residential Development), Area 2 (Creek Buffer & 
Limited Activity Zone), Area 3 (Creek Buffer) and Area 4 (Open Space) rather than just 
Areas A and B) for easier implementation.  City staff has also slightly amended the 
Suggested Modifications in this section to be clear that these additional use limitations 
only apply in the coastal zone.  Refer to Attachment 3, p. 3-6 for exact text.    
 
Suggested Modification 4 – adds a new section (“Owner Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions”) to outline required restrictions for new development, particularly related to 
landscaping and lighting, and to inform future homeowners of their resource protection 
responsibilities.  These requirements had previously been included solely in the 
subdivision project’s conditions of approval.  Refer to Attachment 3, p. 6-7 for exact text. 
 
Suggested Modification 5 – adds a new section (“Lighting”) to limit exterior lighting to 
protect sensitive wildlife habitat that may be adversely affected by excessive night 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 6 

6 
 

lighting by shielding it and directing it to the ground, using the lowest output permissible, 
prohibiting lighting near the creek and limiting lighting types.  This issue was previously 
addressed by the subdivision project’s conditions of approval and the City’s Outdoor 
Lighting Ordinance.  Refer to Attachment 3, p. 7-8 for exact text. 
 
Suggested Modification 6 – amends the “Setback and Open Yard Requirements” 
section to add a new subsection (E. Coastal Zone) to require a 100-foot setback buffer 
from Arroyo Burro Creek for all residential development.  The only exceptions are for 
restoration, erosion control and public access improvements including the multi-use 
public access way and related driveway access improvements.  Refer to Attachment 3, 
p. 8-9 for exact text. 
 
Suggested Modification 7 – adds new sections (“Arroyo Burro Creek Restoration and 
Stabilization Plan; Veronica Meadows Riparian Habitat Enhancement Plan; Creek and 
Riparian Habitat Management Plan” and “Arroyo Burro Creek Upland Restoration Plan”) 
to require restoration, enhancement and management of the creek and upland habitat, 
with details about required components of such restoration, etc.  These requirements 
were previously addressed in the subdivision project’s conditions of approval.  Refer to 
Attachment 3, p. 10-12 for exact text. 
 
Suggested Modification 8 – adds a new section (“Water Quality”) to address erosion 
control, both short- and long-term, storm water management, and water quality.  These 
requirements were previously addressed solely in the subdivision project’s conditions of 
approval. Refer to Attachment 3, p. 12-17 for exact text. 
 
Suggested Modification 9 – amends two sections (“Home Size and Development 
Restrictions” and “Fencing”) to require all residential development to be located a 
minimum of 100 feet from the creek, and specifies the types of fencing permitted within 
this setback area, respectively.  Refer to Attachment 3, p. 17-18 for exact text. 
 
Environmental Review 
 
The City Council certified a Final Environmental Impact Report (2008 Final EIR) for the 
Veronica Meadows Specific Plan on June 17, 2008 (Resolution No. 08-049).  At that time 
the Council adopted findings of fact, a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and a 
Statement of Overriding consideration for the project.  The CCC’s Suggested Modifications 
are more protective of the environment (increased creek setback) or have no impact on 
the environmental analysis done in the 2008 Final EIR.  No changes to the certified 2008 
Final EIR are required.  Environmental findings are included in the Resolution and 
Ordinance. 
 
Bridge Decision 
 
The City’s approval of the Veronica Meadows subdivision included an temporary 
encroachment permit over a very small strip of land that is designated City park (open 
space) property in order to allow the construction of a public road and bridge from Las 



Council Agenda Report 
Local Coastal Program Amendment And Zoning Ordinance Amendments For Veronica 
Meadows Specific Plan  
November 22, 2011 
Page 7 

7 
 

Positas Road to the project site on a portion of a City-owned parcel (outside the coastal 
zone).  This aspect  of the project was the subject of litigation between Citizens Planning 
Association and the Veronica Meadows developer, Mark Lee over whether the City's' 
approval of a vehicular bridge (which would ultimately become part of a dedicated City 
street) for access to the development over a small  City park parcel requires a City voter 
approval.  Ultimately, the Superior Court ruled that such approval will be required. 
Consequently, the court’s decision requires the project developer to either address the 
need for access to the project site without impacting the City park parcel or for the City to 
act to have the voters review and approve the required bridge access.  Even though the 
handling of this concern is unresolved, staff does not think that it has any present bearing 
on the LCP Amendment.  The subject property is now located within the City of Santa 
Barbara, and will remain without any coastal zoning or a coastal land use designation until 
the City accepts the Coastal Commission’s Suggested Modifications.  It should be noted 
that Suggested Modification No. 7 includes the following limitation to the Specific Plan: “No 
bridge crossings shall be permitted over Arroyo Burro Creek within the Coastal Zone.” 
(Section 28.50.092)  The bridge, as originally approved, is located across from the Jerry 
Harwin Parkway (entrance driveway to Elings Park) and is not within the Coastal Zone. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Planning Staff has reviewed the Suggested Modifications to the LCP amendment 
package, and recommends the City Council make the Suggested Modifications to the 
ordinance.  The Suggested Modifications are in keeping with the Specific Plan and 
provide for additional protection of coastal resources.  
 
Therefore, Planning Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution, and 
introduce and subsequently adopt the ordinance incorporating the CCC’s revisions.  
Following Council’s adoption of the ordinance, Planning Staff will forward the ordinance, 
along with the resolution, to the Executive Director of the CCC for a determination of 
consistency with the CCC’s certification and exclusion orders.  Once final certification 
has been obtained from the CCC, the amendments to the LCP will be effective. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1 Letter from the CCC, City of Santa Local Coastal Program  

  Amendment MAJ 3-09 (Veronica Meadows) dated January 
12, 2011 

2. CCC Staff Report and Addendums, dated July 29, 2010, 
August 9, 2010 and August 11, 2010 

3. Final Adopted Suggested Modifications 
 
PREPARED BY: Allison De Busk, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon 

Perdido Streets 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 

 
A. Receive a report on the options for intersection improvements at the intersection 

of De La Vina and Figueroa Streets; 
B. Approve the installation of marked crosswalks and associated warning signs at 

the intersection of De La Vina and Figueroa Streets; and 
C. Hear an update on improvements at the intersection of De La Vina and Canon 

Perdido Streets. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
At the August 9, 2011 Council meeting, staff was instructed to return to Council and 
present information concerning options and funding sources for three improvement 
alternatives for the intersection of De La Vina and Figueroa Streets.  The alternatives 
are:  1) striping, lighting, and signage with an extended red curb on De La Vina Street; 
2) construction of curb extensions on fewer than four corners of the intersection; and 3) 
the construction of curb extensions on all four corners.  Staff recommends partial 
implementation of the first of the alternatives, the installation of painted crosswalks and 
pedestrian warning signs, as a first step.  If the number of crashes increases, a higher 
level of traffic control may be considered.  Progressively increasing the level of traffic 
control is consistent with good traffic engineering practices.  However, if the City 
proceeds with this recommendation the City will need to abandon a secured Highway 
Safety Improvement Project (HSIP) grant, which would have funded construction costs 
associated with the installation of curb extensions and additional street lighting. 
 
Council also directed staff to implement operational improvements at the intersection of 
De La Vina and Canon Perdido streets and to report those improvements to Council.  
To improve operations at De La Vina and Canon Perdido Streets, staff increased 
visibility by adding additional red curb on De La Vina Street, just north of the 
intersection. 



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The frequency of pedestrian involved crashes at the intersection of De La Vina and 
Figueroa Streets peaked between July 2008 and August 2009, when four pedestrian-
involved crashes were reported, including one fatality.  Since August 2009, one 
pedestrian involved crash has been reported, which occurred in May 2010. 
 
There have been no crashes reported at the intersection of De La Vina and Figueroa 
Streets since that pedestrian involved crash in May 2010.  It is unknown whether there 
is a trend moving towards less frequent intersection related crashes, or whether we are 
experiencing a temporary lull in crashes.  Typically, crash data from the three most 
recent years are considered when looking for trends.  Because there have been 
relatively few recent crashes, data for the past ten years is presented in Table 1 to 
illustrate long term trends.  Most of the pedestrian-involved crashes (8 of 10) have 
happened during daylight hours.  As illustrated in Table 2, the pedestrian involved 
crashes have not been concentrated at one particular segment of the intersection. 
 

Table 1- Ten Year Crash History – De La Vina and Figueroa Streets 

Year 
Correctable 

Type 
Vehicle/Vehicle 

Crashes 

Pedestrian Involved Crashes 

Total Day Night 

2001 2 1 1 0 

2002 1 0 0 0 

2003 2 1 1 0 

2004 0 1 1 0 

2005 1 0 0 0 

2006 2 1 0 1 

2007 1 1 1 0 

2008 0 2 1 1 

2009 1 2 2 0 

2010 0 1 1 0 

2011 YTD* 0 0 0 0 

Total 10 10 8 2 
* As of November 28, 2011.  Availability of crash data can take several months. 



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 3 

 

 
Table 2- Location of Pedestrian Involved Crashes, 2001 to 2011 

 
Intersection Segment 

North West South East 

Number of 
Pedestrian 
Crashes 

2 1 3 3 

 
Intersection Improvement Alternatives for De La Vina and Figueroa Streets 
 
Typically, when an operational issue is identified, progressive steps are taken to 
mitigate the issue.  Initial steps are usually low cost.  In this case, progressive steps 
include improving visibility so that pedestrians and drivers can see each other in time to 
make good decisions, adding signs and pavement markings to draw attention to this 
frequently used pedestrian crossing, improving street lighting, and reducing the crossing 
distance so that pedestrians can utilize smaller gaps in traffic to cross.   
 
Staff has already taken steps to improve visibility:  The previous red curb zone provided 
about 163 feet of visibility between approaching vehicles and pedestrians standing on 
the edge of the curb.  The red curb zone was extended from about 85 feet to 100 feet 
so that 200 feet of visibility is available, which is considered adequate for a speed limit 
of 30 mph. 
 
Alternative 1A – Add Painted Crosswalk and Warning Signs 
 
Staff recommends this alternative, the installation of painted crosswalks and pedestrian 
warning signs, at this time.  Given the site conditions at De La Vina and Figueroa 
Streets, the use of this type of treatment is consistent with nationally established traffic 
engineering practices.  In addition to providing increased visibility, providing ladder style 
crosswalk markings and florescent green pedestrian warning signs can increase driver 
awareness of pedestrians. 
 
Painted crosswalks and warning signs are a reasonable first step to improve pedestrian 
crossing conditions. If direction is given to proceed with this treatment, this intersection 
will be flagged and re-reviewed.  If the desired results have not been achieved, more 
restrictive and expensive forms of traffic control can then be considered, such as curb 
extensions, pedestrian activated beacons, and if warranted, traffic signals. 
 
The cost to install painted crosswalks and warning signs is about $1,000, and would be 
paid for with money from the Streets Operations Fund.  Accepting this recommendation, 
however, will mean that the HSIP grant that was obtained for a project that contained 
curb extensions and additional street lighting will no longer be available. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 4 

 

Alternative 1B - Add Painted Crosswalk and Warning Signs, and Add Lighting 
 
This alternative would add improved lighting.  A single streetlight exists on the 
southwest corner of the intersection.  Providing a streetlight on the northeast corner of 
the intersection would improve lighting for the crossing on the north leg of the 
intersection.  As noted earlier in this report, only 2 of 10 pedestrian related crashes 
reported in the past 10 years occurred during dark hours. 
 
The cost to install an additional streetlight on the northeast corner is about $35,000, 
which would be funded by the City, in addition to $1,000 for the painted crosswalk and 
warning signs in Alternative 1A. 
 
Alternative 2A – Add Curb Extensions (All Corners), and Add Lighting 
 
This alternative would add curb extensions at all corners.  It is the most expensive 
option, but has been approved for a Highway Safety Improvement Project (HSIP) grant. 
As applied to pedestrian applications, curb extensions provide two benefits: 1) to 
improve visibility by moving the starting point for the pedestrian closer to the travel lane; 
and, 2) to decrease the pedestrian crossing distance. 
 
Curb extensions designed for pedestrian applications can be designed differently than 
curb extensions designed for traffic calming purposes.  The goal of traffic calming is 
typically to slow traffic, and that is usually accomplished by introducing a horizontal 
deflection (like a curb extension or median) or vertical deflection (like a speed hump) to 
the roadway.  The more pronounced the traffic calming device, the more likely traffic will 
be slowed.  Curb extensions designed for pedestrians only have to extend far enough 
into the roadway to gain the desired sight distance and decrease the crossing distance. 
 
A good starting point for this type of design is to overlay all possible turning movements 
by a large delivery truck (the design vehicle for Downtown Santa Barbara).  Areas of 
unused pavement near the corners of the intersection are potential areas to locate curb 
extensions (See Attachment 1). 
 
Driving lanes that are wide enough for vehicles and bikes to share are 14 feet wide.  For 
De La Vina Street, two of these shared lanes are needed (28 feet wide).  De La Vina 
Street is 36 feet wide, meaning that up to eight feet would be available for curb 
extensions (four feet per side). 
 
A concept showing curb extensions on all corners is shown on Attachment 2.  Curb 
extensions were intentionally not shown in areas that would interfere with the normal 
movement of larger vehicles. 
 
An analysis of gaps in traffic was performed to determine the number of crossing 
opportunities that pedestrians have.  At 36 feet wide, most pedestrians can cross De La 
Vina Street with a 14 second gap in traffic.  At 28 feet wide, most pedestrian would be 
able to cross De La Vina Street with an 11 second gap.   



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 5 

 

As illustrated in Table 3, reducing the crossing distance by eight feet could provide 
approximately 45% more crossing opportunities (1046 versus 720) between the hours 
of 7 A.M. and 7 P.M. on a typical weekday. 
 
 

Table 3 – Pedestrian Crossing Opportunities By Time of Day and Crossing 
Distance at De La Vina and Figueroa Streets 

Hour of Day 
Opportunities to Cross Per Hour 

36-foot Crossing (Existing) 28-foot Crossing 

7:00 AM 80 98 

8:00 AM 66 93 

9:00 AM 75 105 

10:00 AM 68 89 

11:00 AM 58 85 

12:00 PM 54 88 

1:00 PM 53 82 

2:00 PM 55 83 

3:00 PM 53 81 

4:00 PM 43 73 

5:00 PM 45 70 

6:00 PM 70 99 

Total 720 1046 
 
 
The cost to install curb extensions on all corners, plus new street lighting is about 
$251,000.  Construction costs would be funded by a Highway Safety Improvement 
Project (HSIP) grant.  Design costs of about $25,000 would be the responsibility of the 
City.  Funding for this design is available in the Streets Fund. 
 
Alternative 2B – Add Curb Extensions (North Side Only), and Add Lighting 
 
If curb extensions are added to only two corners, operationally, the north side corners 
would benefit the most.  Visibility for the south side crossing is already good because of 
the additional distance to parked cars north of the intersection. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 6 

 

Of all of the alternatives that include curb extensions, this alternative is not 
recommended because some of the past crashes have occurred in the south crosswalk 
and overall safety benefits would not be fully realized. 
 
The cost to install curb extensions on the north side corners only, plus new street 
lighting is about $206,000, which includes design costs.  Because the project, as 
approved for the grant by CalTrans, includes curb extensions on all corners, any 
change to the project would trigger a re-evaluation of the safety benefits, and funding 
may or may not be approved. 
 
Update On Improvements to De La Vina and Canon Perdido Streets 
 
As directed by Council, staff made improvements to the De La Vina and Canon Perdido 
Streets intersection.  The improvements included increasing the available sight distance 
by increasing the amount of red curb on De La Vina Street north of the intersection.  
This resulted in a loss of one parking space on either side of the road. 
 
Staff has flagged this intersection, and operations will be re-reviewed.  If further 
mitigation is justified, additional improvements could include marked crosswalks and 
warnings signs, and/or tree removal. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The financial impact for each alternative is shown in Table 4, below: 
 

Table 4 – Budget and Financial Information for each Alternative 
Alternative 

Number Description Total Cost City Cost Grant 
Funding 

1A Add Crosswalks and 
Warning Signs $1000 $1000 $0 

1B 
Add Crosswalks and 
Warning Signs, Add 
Lighting 

$36,000 $36,000 $0 

2A Add Curb Extensions All 
Corners, Add Lighting $276,000 $25,000 $251,000 

2B Add Curb Extensions 
North Side, Add Lighting $206,000 unknown unknown 

 
HSIP grant funding, which is Federal funding administered by Caltrans, was awarded 
for the project represented by Alternative 2A.  The project, as currently approved by 
Caltrans, is to provide improved street lighting and curb extensions on all corners.  Any 
modification to that plan, such as curb extensions only on the north side, will require the 



Council Agenda Report 
De La Vina Intersection Improvements At Figueroa And Canon Perdido Streets  
January 24, 2012 
Page 7 

 

project’s safety benefits to be reevaluated by Caltrans, and funding may or may not be 
approved for the modified plan. 
 
The City would be responsible for any design costs.  For the alternatives that include 
curb extensions, design costs are estimated to be $25,000, which is available in the 
Streets Fund.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Truck Turning Templates for Possible Truck Movements 
 2. Curb Extension Concept: All Corners, All Non-Interfering  
  Directions 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/DB/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  140.07 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Advisory Groups Updates And Council Liaisons 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the appointment of Liaisons to Advisory Boards and 
Commissions. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Traditionally, every January, the City Council appoints Council Liaisons to Advisory 
Groups.   
 
It is recommended that Council Liaisons be appointed to the groups on the attached list. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 2011 Advisory Groups Council Liaisons 
 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator's Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office
 
 
 
 
 



























Agenda Item No.   
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appointments To City Advisory Groups 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council make appointments to the City advisory groups. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Currently, there are 61 positions available for appointment to various City advisory groups.  
On November 1, November 15, and November 22, 2011, the Council interviewed 
applicants for these positions.   
 
The Guidelines for the City of Santa Barbara Advisory Groups, Resolution No. 06-092, 
states that applicants are required to appear for an interview before the City Council.  The 
names of applicants failing to appear for an interview are removed from the list of persons 
eligible for appointment.  A list of applicants eligible for appointment is attached.  With the 
exception of the Housing Authority Commission, appointments to the advisory groups will 
be effective January 1, 2012.  The appointment to the Housing Authority Commission will 
be effective on February 16, 2012. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Eligible Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Cynthia M. Rodriguez, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 
 

ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2014. 
• Residents of the City or a full-time employees of an entity doing business within the City who demonstrate an 

interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access and who represent the public at 
large: 
 Two members from the Architectural/Engineering/Building Community; and 
 Two members from the Disability Community. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Architectural/ 
Engineering/Building 
Communities (2) 
 

None    

Disability Community (2) Robert Burnham 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

  

Ken McLellan 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Scott Smigel    

 



2 
 

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City or the County of Santa Barbara; any of the following: 

 Licensed architect; 
 Member who possess professional experience in related fields including, but not limited to, landscape 

architecture, building design, structural engineering or industrial design; or 
 Public at large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect/ 
Professional 
Qualifications/ 
Public at Large (2) 
 

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of Review; 
2) Planning Commission 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Kirk B. Gradin   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Robert Kupiec   Architect; Qualified Elector - 
County 

Kevin Moore   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Stephanie Poole   Architect; Qualified Elector – City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks Commission; 
2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

 
 

 



 

3 
 

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Persons with acknowledged accomplishments in the arts and who demonstrate an interest in and commitment to 

cultural and arts activities. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (3) 
 

Darian Bleecher 6/22/04 & 12/18/07 
(7 years, 6 months) 

  

Charmaine Curtis Jacobs  1) Historic Landmarks; 
2) Parks and Recreation; & 
3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Current Planning 
Commissioner; term expires 
12/31/11 

Linda Saccoccio    

Carol M. Taylor    

Thea Vandervoort    

Nathan Vonk    

 



4 
 

BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

• One vacancy. 
• Open term. 
• Resident of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County. 
• Appointee shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 

codes of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
unincorporated area 
of Santa Barbara 
County (1) 
 

None    

 



5 
 

CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2013. 
• Resident of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City (1) None    

 
 



6 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government and, for 1 year after ceasing to be 

a member, may not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Alan T. Kasehagen  11/25/03 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  

Donna Lewis 6/28/05 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  



7 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

• Five vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2013; one term expires 12/31/2014; and three terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents or employees within the City but need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• One representative from each: 

 Eastside Neighborhood  Housing Interests  Human Services Agencies 
 Senior Community  Youth Oriented Services  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Eastside 
Neighborhood (1) 

Veronica Loza 7/3/07 & 12/18/07 
(4 years, 6 months) 

  

Housing Interests (1) None    

Human Services 
Agencies (1) 

None   Also eligible for the Youth 
Oriented Services 
category 

Senior Community (1) None    

Youth Oriented 
Services (1) 

Daniel Ramirez 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

1) Community Development & 
Human Services  
Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

 
 



8 
 

COMMUNITY EVENTS & FESTIVALS COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2014; and four terms expire 12/31/2015. 

 Three representatives of the Business/Lodging/Retail Industry; 
 One representative of the Cultural Arts; and 
 Two residents of the City who represent the public at large (one of whom shall not represent any specific 

group). 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Business/Lodging/Retail 
Industry (3) 

Jason McCarthy 12/13/05 & 12/18/07 
(6 years) 

 County 

Cultural Arts (1) Laura Inks   County 

Public at Large (2) Kate Schwab   City 

 
 
 



9 
 

CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City of Santa Barbara: 

 One representative from the Hotel/Lodging Industry; and 
 Three members with experience in ocean use (e.g., recreational user or commercial fisherman, etc.), 

business, environmental issues and/or provide community at large representation. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Hotel/Lodging Industry (1) Paul Bullock 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Experience in ocean use, 
business, or 
environmental issues, 
and/or represents the 
community at large (3) 

Stephen MacIntosh 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 

Lee Moldaver 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Kathleen “Betsy” Weber 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

 City 

 



10 
 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara who demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown 

parking issues. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
the County (2) 
 

William “Bill” Collyer 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Tom A. Williams 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

 



11 
 

FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Jennifer Christensen 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Thomas Parker    

John J. Torell    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board 
of Review Member; term 
expires 12/31/14 

 



12 
 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; one term expires 12/31/2013; and one term expires 12/31/2014. 

 One active retired police officer who need not be a resident or qualified elector of the City; and 
 Two qualified electors of the City who are not active firefighters or police officers for the City of Santa 

Barbara. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Active/Retired Police 
Officer (1) 
 

None   
 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

None    

 



13 
 

HARBOR COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Frank Kelly 12/17/02, 11/25/03 & 
12/18/07 
(9 years) 

  

Helene Webb    

 



14 
 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City; any of the following: 

 Licensed Architect  Licensed Landscape Architect 
 Professional Architectural Historian  Public at large 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified elector of 
the City who is a 
licensed Architect, 
licensed Landscape 
Architect,  
Professional 
Architectural 
Historian, or public at 
large (2) 
 

Michael Drury 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks and Recreation 
Commission;  

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 
(Current Planning 
Commissioner; Term expires 
12/31/11) 

Ronald Sorgman   Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

 



15 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 2/15/2014 (Appointment effective on 2/16/12). 
• Resident of the City who is a senior tenant (age 62 or older and who is receiving housing assistance from the 

Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara) 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Senior Tenant (1) 
 

Victor Suhr    

 



16 
 

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) None    

 



17 
 

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2012; One term expires 12/31/2013; two terms expire 12/31/2014; and one term expires 

12/31/2015 
• Two residents of the City; and one representative from each: 

 Civil Liberties Advocate  Criminal Defense Attorney 
 Drug abuse & treatment & prevention counselor  Medical Professional 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Civil Liberties Advocate (1) None    

Criminal Defense Attorney 
(1) 

None    

Drug abuse, treatment & 
prevention counselor (1) 

None    

Medical Professional (1) None    

Residents of the City (2) None    



18 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents of the City who need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• Two representatives of the public at large; and one representative from any of the following neighborhoods: 

 Eastside  Lower Eastside  Laguna 
 Westside   Lower Westside  

• One appointee may be a youth member (age 16 or older). 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd 

 
Notes 

Neighborhood 
Representative (1) 

Teresa Peña 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

 Eastside Neighborhood 

Public at Large (2) Sally Kingston 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

  

 



19 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy.   
• Term expires 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified elector of the City, or a resident of the City and a citizen of the United States who is 16 years of age or older. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City, or a 
resident of the City 
and a citizen of the 
United States who is 
16 years of age or 
older (1) 

Megan Luciana Diaz   Qualified Elector 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks & Recreation 
Commission; & 

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Qualified Elector  

(Current Planning 
Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11) 

 Charles Trentacosti 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 Qualified Elector 

 
 



20 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (2) 
 

William A. Anikouchine   Current Harbor Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11 

John P. Campanella    

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of 
Review 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Stephen M. Cushman    

June Pujo    

Daniel Ramirez  1) Community Development & 
Human Services Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Joseph A. Rution    

Dan Secord    

Addison S. Thompson    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board of Review 
Member; term expires 12/31/14 



21 
 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; and three terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara: 

 One homeowner  Two landlords  One tenant 
Note:  Non-resident members must be owners of residential rental property within the City limits or 
affiliated with organizations concerned with landlord-tenant issues within the City limits. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Homeowner (1) David McDermott   City 

Landlords (2) None    

Tenant (1) David M. Brainard 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 



22 
 

SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD  
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2015. 
• Resident of the City or the County who is a licensed landscape architect. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architect (1) 
 

None    

 



23 
 

WATER COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Barry Keller 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

  

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 24, 2012 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Police Department Update  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police Chief regarding the Santa 
Barbara Police Department. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As requested by the Mayor and City Council, beginning on December 6, 2011, Police 
Chief Cam Sanchez will give an oral presentation to Council regarding the status of the 
Police Department and its operations.  This presentation will be part of a series of 
updates and will occur on a periodic basis. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Police Chief 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Police Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 















 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
STATE ROUTE 225 (Las Positas Road\Cliff Drive) 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 

- 1 - 

 
 SUMMARY OF RELINQUISHMENT BACKGROUND 

 
 
 September 2004 

• Staff received direction from Council to develop a scope of work for the 
Relinquishment Report (Report), including an in-depth analysis of the condition of 
State Route 225 (SR 225), required improvements to return SR 225 to state of 
good repair, and estimates of ongoing maintenance costs. 

 
 December 2004 

• Transportation and Circulation Committee (TCC) found SR 225 relinquishment 
consistent with goals of the City’s Circulation Element. 
 

 January 2005 
• Council directed staff to initiate relinquishment of SR 225 from Caltrans to City, 

and to annex some parcels along SR 225 into the City to simplify relinquishment 
process (Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission approved 
annexation in April 2008). 
 

 September 2005 
• Council approved the consultant contract to prepare the Report for the technical 

assessment of the route that included: 
 Cataloging existing conditions, showing drainage, right of way, utilities, 

and other facilities; 
 Documenting existing pavement conditions and future needed 

maintenance; 
 Describing capital improvements from Caltrans to the City for a “State Of 

Good Repair”; and 
 Estimating and analyzing future maintenance costs that could be incurred 

by the City over the next 10 years. 

• Report identified City improvement needs, future City maintenance improvement 
objectives, and points of negotiation to draft required Cooperative Agreement. 
Negotiation points included potential compensation for existing infrastructure 
deficiencies and any future route improvements. 
 

 2008 
• Staff began negotiations with Caltrans regarding cost estimates to bring SR 225 

to a state of good repair. 
 Caltrans estimated $1M contribution (drainage & bridge work); 
 City estimated $1.3M  contribution. 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 

- 2 - 

 2009 
• City staff and Caltrans met monthly to resolve issues and develop a Cooperative 

Agreement. 
 Caltrans’ offer continued to be significantly less than City’s estimated 

amount; 
 City requested that Caltrans contribute to cost of SR 225 pavement 

maintenance prior to relinquishment; 
 Primarily due to restriction of available State funds, no Cooperative 

Agreement could be reached; and 
 Caltrans and City agreed to place negotiations on a one-year hold. 

 
 2010 

• Early summer 2010, Caltrans and City resumed relinquishment negotiations. 
 Caltrans reiterated $1M offer in letter dated July 22, 2010; 
 Caltrans assured City staff in December 3, 2010 conference call that they 

were scheduled to complete SR 225 pavement maintenance prior to 
relinquishment (which was completed in summer 2011). Caltrans also 
stated that they could not fund what they consider to be improvements, 
such as new traffic signal controls for conversion to the City’s traffic 
control system. 
 

SR 225 Infrastructure Inventory 
 
Below is a general list of the SR 225 infrastructure inventory: 
 

Pavement: 1,330,000 square feet 
Sidewalk: 28,500 lineal feet 
Drainage:  6,248 feet of pipe 
 37 inlets 
 31 structures 
Intersections: 29 (8 are signalized) 
Viaduct adjacent to Santa Barbara City College:  500 feet 
Las Positas Bridge (overcrossing at Union Pacific Railroad) 
Large retaining walls on Las Positas Road and on Cliff Drive near Loma Alta 
 
 



Attachment 3 

 

City Pavement Management System 
 
Since 1985, the City has implemented a strategic pavement management system 
that is based on the proven concept that it is far more cost effective to proactively 
maintain streets than to allow them to deteriorate to the point of needing 
significant rehabilitation. This proactive methodology has been successful in 
raising the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of City Streets from 59 in 1985 to 69 
in 2010. The PCI rating system is on a scale from 0 to 100, with roads receiving a 
rating of 100 are considered to be newly paved, while roads receiving a rating of 
0 are considered to have served their full life expectancy. From 1992 to 2009, the 
City was able to achieve its longstanding goal to maintain a PCI rating of 70 or 
higher. Since 2009, the PCI level has fallen to 68 as result of increased 
pavement material costs and increased deferred maintenance. Also, for the past 
several years, the City’s Pavement Management Program allotted funds have 
been lower than the recommended funding level due to competing Streets 
Capital Program funding priorities. 
 
The estimated annual cost to maintain the City’s roads at a PCI of 70 is 
approximately $4.7M per year. The average amount that the City has budgeted 
for pavement maintenance over the past 5 years has been approximately $2.3 M 
per year. 
 
Until approximately 2006, the City was able to fund slurry sealing of nearly all 
roads within each pavement maintenance zone. At current funding levels, the 
City is only able to slurry seal approximately 50-60% of the roads within a 
pavement maintenance zone. When available funding does not meet the 
pavement maintenance needs, the result is that funds are allocated to the 
highest pavement maintenance priorities, typically being the arterial streets as 
opposed to the residential streets. 
 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOCX
	3.DOCX
	4.DOCX
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.PDF
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.PDF
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	Mayor
	Randy Rowse
	Bendy White
	JANUARY 24, 2012
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



